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July 8, 2015 

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the City of 
Brush. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal 
control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should 
not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than 
absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 

Lauer, Szabo & Associates, PC, Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unqualified 
("clean") opinion on the City of Brush's financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2014. The independent auditors report is located at the front of the 
financial section of this report. 

Management's discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditor's report and provides a nairntive introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic 
financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be 
read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

The City of Brush, incorporated in 1884, is located in northeastern Colorado, 90 miles 
from Denver. Brush is located in a large agricultural area and serves a population of 
5,410. The City of Brush is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal 
property located within its boundaries. It also is empowered by state statute to extend its 
corporate limits by annexation, which the City has done from time to time, and to collect 
sales tax. The current sales tax rate is 3.6 percent. 

The City of Brush operates under the council-administrator form of government. Policy­
making and legislative authority are vested in a governing council (Council) consisting of 
the mayor and six other members, all elected on a non-partisan basis. The Council 
appoints the government's administrator, who in turn appoints the heads of the various 
depm1ments. Council members serve four-year terms, with three members elected every 
two years. The mayor is elected for a four-year term and is elected at large; constituents 
of their wards elect the remaining Council members. 

The City of Brush provides a full range of services, including police and fire protection; 
the construction and maintenance of streets and other infrastruchire; and recreational and 
cultural activities. Water, trash, waste water, and storm water services are provided and 
functions as enterprise funds of the City of Brush and therefore has been included as an 
integral part of the City of Brush's financial statements. Additional information on all of 
these departments can be found in the notes to the financial statements (See Note l.C). 
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The Council is required to adopt a final budget by no later than December l 51
h of each 

fiscal year. This annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Brush's financial 
planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund, function (e.g. , public safety), and 
department, ( e.g., police). 

Local economy 

Brush! is nestled in the agriculturally rich South Platte River Valley. In 1886 a number 
of Danish families formed a settlement, attracted to the rich and loam soil. Today 
bountiful crops of com, soy, sugar beets and wheat still prevail. Although Brush remains 
agriculturally based, ag support industries, energy production and health care have helped 
diversify and strengthen our economy. Major employers include Colorado Energy 
Management and the adjacent tomato factory linked by waste heat from the cogeneration 
plant, Eben Ezer and Sunset Manor care facilities, East Morgan County Hospital, the 
School District and City government. The population growth is at a manageable rate of 
2-3%. The City continues to pminer with developers to extend infrastructure conducive 
to designed growth. 

City parks have expanded over the last few years with the addition of Prairie Trails and 
Watrous parks. The most recent update to the parks was in 2014 for a newly constructed 
Skate Park. 

Of utmost concern is water. Future development is dependent upon ample and quality 
water. For water rights and augmentation purposes the City is seeking additional 
augmentation and water sources. The appointed Water Advisory Committee, utilizing 
the City' s Raw Water Master Plan and Water Infrastructure Master Plan are essential in 
developing and managing Brush's most valuable natural resource. The City is also 
working on a feasibility study on a reverse osmosis system to treat other water sources 
for the City. 

Skilled labor is readily available, especially due to the close proximity of Morgan 
Community College and Northeastern Junior College as well as the availability of long 
distance learning with Colorado universities. 

Retail is not as prominent as the City of Brush would like as sales tax drives our General 
Fund. The 2013 sales tax revenues increased by $103 ,216 (8%) from the prior year. City 
sales tax for 2014 increased $18,522 (1.3%). Sales tax revenues have seen increased 
revenue over the last tlu·ee years and there are still signs of economic growth in other 
areas. In 2014 there were several small unoccupied buildings in Brush renovated and 
reopened with new businesses. Renovation continues on a vacant building for a new 
cheese factory. 

Long-term financial planning 

The Council has set a budgetary and planning policy guideline to have enough cash 
reserves set aside at the end of each fiscal year to cover three to six months of 
expenditures for emergency purposes. When possible the targeted cash reserves are six 
months. 
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To better improve the City of Brush' s downtown business area, the Council is cunently 
working with the local Chamber of Commerce on a Main Street project which will 
improve the current storm drainage for the downtown businesses. The cost ofthis project 
would be approximately 1.5 million dollars. In 2006, thru a joint effort between the 
Chamber of Commerce and the City of Brush, a ballot issue was passed to increase sales 
tax by .6% for future street improvements throughout the City. These funds go into the 
Capital Improvement Fund and are utilized for street related projects only. 

The new sales tax increase went into effect January 1, 2007. Citizens witnessed 
numerous improvements to streets and money is being reserved for future street 
improvements. 

Major initiatives 

The City of Brush recognizes the need for additional water supplies and at the same time 
understands the value of water conservation. In 2008 a tiered water billing system was 
initiated to help generate additional revenue and to help with water conservation. 

Acknowledgements 
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205 Main St. , P.O. Box 1886 , Sterling, CO 80751-7886 
Phone 970-522-2218 , FAX 970-522-2220 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 
City of Brush 
Brush, Colorado 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Brush (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presenta tion of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require tha t we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financia l statements a re free of material 
missta tement. 

An audit involves p erforming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the a mounts and 
disclosures in the financial s tatements . The procedures selected depend on the a uditors' 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of m aterial misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity 's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of 
December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, 
cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis listed in the table of contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We h ave applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion 
or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The other supplementary 
information and the local highway finance report listed in the table of contents is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived 
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records u sed to prepare the 
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial s tatements or to the basic financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplementary 
information and the local highway finance report is fairly stated, in a ll material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Sterling, Colorado 
July 20, 2015 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Brush, we offer readers of the City of Brush financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Brush for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2014. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional 
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 2-4 of this report. 
All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of dollars. 

Financial Highlights 
• The assets of the City of Brush exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by 

$24,137,501. Of this amount, $7,489,012 may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Brush's governmental funds repmied combined ending 
fund balances of $4,036,735 an increase of $220,147 in comparison with the prior year. Of this amount 
$2,365,871 is available for spending at the government's discretion (umeserved, unassigned fund balance). 

• At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $2,365,871 or 67 
percent of total general fund expenditures. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Brush' s basic financial 
statements. The City of Brush's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City of Brush's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Brush assets and liabilities, with the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve 
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Brush is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Brush that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The governmental activities of the City of 
Brush include general government, public safety, streets, economic development, parks, and culture and 
recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Brush include water, trash and garbage, waste water, and 
storm water operations. 
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The government-wide financial statements have no component units repo1ied m them. These financial 
statements can be found on pages 17-19 of this report. 

Condensed financial statements for government wide statements are as follows: 

City of Brush Net Position 

Total 

Governmental 
activities Business-type activities Primary Government 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

Current and other assets 4,903,523 4,514,221 3,959,488 4,966,921 8,863,011 9,481,142 

Capital assets-net of 

accumulated depreciation 5,501,415 5,248,513 19,723,619 19,037,156 25,225,034 24,285,669 

Total assets 10,404,938 9,762,734 23,683,107 24,004,077 34,088,045 33,766,811 

Long-term liabilities 186,373 182,237 8,238,288 8,666,495 8,424,661 8,848,732 

Other liabilities 201,815 55,463 659,095 655,747 860,910 711,210 

Total liabi lities 388,188 237,700 8,897,383 9,322,242 9,285,571 9,559,942 

Deferred inflow of resources 

Deferred tax revenue 664,973 642,170 664,973 642,170 

Net investment in 

Capital assets 5,501,415 5,248,513 11,147,014 10,031,455 16,648,429 15,279,958 

Restricted 1,248,273 1,162,579 236,185 186,862 1,484,458 1,349,441 

Unrestricted 2,602,089 2,471,772 3,402,525 4,463,528 6,004,614 6,935,300 

Total net position 9,351,777 8,882,864 14,785,724 14,681,835 24,137,501 23,564,699 

-11 -



Revenues 
Program revenues 

Charges for services 
Capital grants 

General revenues 
Prope1ty taxes 
Other 

Total revenues 
Program expenses 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture & recreation 
Water 
Trash & garbage 
Waste water 
Storm water 

Total expenses 
Excess (deficiency) 

before transfers 
Transfers 
Increase (decrease) in 

net assets 

Net Pos ition - beginning 
of year as previous ly 
reported 

Prior period adjus tment 
Net Pos ition -beginning 
of year as restated 

Net position - ending 

City of Brush Changes in Net Positon 

Governmental Activities Business-type activities 
2014 2013 2014 2013 

Total 
Pl"imary Government 
2014 2013 

$ 664,306 $ 
341,534 

687,956 $ 3, 189,295 $ 3,188,112 $ 3,853,601 $ 3,876,068 
181,490 42,700 341,534 224,190 

630,340 
2,625,424 
4,261,604 

900,416 
987,518 

1,204,852 
763,445 

3,856,23 I 

405,373 
63,540 

468,913 

8,882,864 

8,882,864 

627,149 
2,553,072 
4,049,667 

842,926 
1,097,469 
1,095,035 

669,293 

3,704,723 

344,944 
62,790 

407,734 

8,475,130 

8,475, 130 

436,157 
3,625,452 

1,080,245 
433,550 

1,749,903 
206,686 

3,470,384 

155,068 
(63,540) 

91 ,528 

14,681,835 
12,361 

14,694, 196 

291 , 183 
3,521,995 

966,275 
435,459 

1,421,848 
173,058 

2,996,640 

525,355 
(62,790) 

462,565 

14,2 19,270 

14,219,270 

630,340 
3,061 ,581 
7,887,056 

900,416 
987,518 

1,204,852 
763,445 

1,080,245 
433,550 

1,749,903 
206,686 

7,326,615 

560,441 

560,441 

23,564,699 
12,361 

23,577,060 

627,149 
2,844,255 
7,571,662 

842,926 
1,097,469 
1,095,035 

669,293 
966,275 
435,459 

1,421 ,848 
J 73,058 

6,701,363 

870,299 

870,299 

22,694,400 

22,694,400 

$ 9,351 ,777 $ 8,882,864 $ 14,785,724 $ 14,681 ,835 $ 24,137,501 $ 23,564,699 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Brush, like other state and 
local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the City of Brush can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and 
proprietary funds. 

Governmental funds. Govenunental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions repo1ted as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such 
information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term financing requirements. 
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Because the focus of governmental funds is nanower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government's near-te1m financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 

The City of Brush maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is considered to be the only major governmental fund. 
Data from the other 11 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual 
fund data for each of these nonrnajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements 
elsewhere in this report. 

The City of Brush adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided on pages 48-54 for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report. 

Propriefa,JJ fimd,;. The City of Brush maintains four enterprise funds classified as proprietary funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City of Brush uses enterprise funds to account for its Water, Trash and Garbage, 
Waste Water, and Storm Water operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in 
more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Water, Trash and 
Garbage, Waste Water and Storm Water operations, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of 
Brush. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-26 of this report. 

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements can be found on pages 27-4 7 of the repmt. 

Other information. Included in the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this rep01t presents 
information concerning the City of Brush's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees. The information can be found in note 8 on pages 43-44 of this report. 

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nom11ajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the general fund supplemental information. Combining and individual nonmajor fund 
statements and schedules can be found on pages 55-63 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In 
the case of the City of Brush, assets exceeded liabilities by $24,137,501 at the close of 2014. 
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Capital assets reflect 74 percent of the City of Brush's total assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and 
equipment). The City of Brush uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the City of Brush's investment in its capital assets is 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Six percent of the City of Brush's net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on 
how they may be used. There is $6,004,614 of umestricted net position, which may be used to meet the 
government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Brush is able to repoli positive balances in all categories of net 
assets, both for the govermnent as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Brush's net position by $468,913, 
thereby accounting for 84 percent of the total growth in the net position of the City of Brush. 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City of Brush's net position by $91,528. The 
increase to net position is 16 percent of the increase. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

As noted earlier the City of Brush uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. 

Governmental fimds. The focus of the City of Brush's governmental funds is to provide information on near­
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of 
Brush 's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Brush's governmental funds reported combined ending fund 
balances of $4,036,735, an increase of $220,147 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 59 percent 
of this total amount ($2,357,871) constitutes umeserved, undesignated fund balance, which is available for 
spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved or designated to indicate 
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for a variety of restricted 
purposes. 

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Brush. At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unreserved, undesignated fund balance of the general fund was $2,365,871, while total fund balance reached 
$2,834,198. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund 
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved, undesignated fund balance represents 67 
percent of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 83 percent of that same amount. 

Proprietmy fimds. The City of Brush's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $3,402,525. The total 
change in net position for the Water, Trash and Garbage, Waste Water, and Storm Water funds was $83,236, 
$3,700, $(98,797) and $103,389, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have 
already been addressed in the discussion of the City of Brush's business-type activities. 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

During the year actual revenues were more than budgeted revenues by $295,466 of which $127,326 can be 
attributed to taxes. During the year actual expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $658,564.The 
savings is mostly in personnel. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City of Brush's investments in capital assets for its governmental and business-type 
activities as of December 31, 2014, amounts to $25,225,034 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment 
in capital assets includes land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, 
and streets. 

Major capital asset events during the cmTent fiscal year were for equipment purchases. 

Additional information on the City of Brush's capital assets can be found in Note 3 on pages 37-38 of this 
report. 

Long-term debt. At the end of the ctment fiscal year, the City of Brush had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$8,161,605. This debt is paid with waste water revenues. 

There was $410,000 in principal paid on the waste water treatment plant loan which was secured thru the 
Colorado Water & Power Authority. 

Additional information on the City of Brush's long-term debt can be found in Notes 4, and 5 on page 39-40 of 
this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates. 

The City of Brush continues to see growth in the business area. There was a 2 percent increase in sales tax for 
2014, with no increase projected for 20 15. In 2014 property taxes for the City of Brush were unchanged. 

During the current fi scal year, umeserved, undesignated fund balance in the general fund increased by $8,823 . 
The City of Brush has appropriated $722,800 of fund balances for spending in the 201 5 fiscal year budget. It is 
intended that this use of available fund balance will avoid the need to raise taxes or charges during the 201 5 
fiscal year. 
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Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Brush' s finances for all those with 
interest in the govermnent's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the Finance Officer, 600 
Edison St. , City of Brush, Brush, CO 80723 . 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
December 31, 2014 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and investments (Notes 1 & 2) $ 3,577,522 $ 3,559,887 $ 7,137,409 
Cash on deposit with Morgan County Treasurer (Notes 1 & 2) 4,681 4,681 
Receivables (Note 1) 

Accrued interest 1,795 1,734 3,529 
Accounts receivable 202,071 323,862 525,933 
Sales tax receivable 274,869 274,869 
Highway users tax receivable 10,726 10,726 
General property taxes receivable 664,973 664,973 
Other receivables 16,862 16,862 

Inventory (Note 1) 36,886 57,143 94 029 

Total Current Assets 4,773,523 3,959,488 8,733,011 

Noncurrent Assets 
Capital Assets (Notes 1 & 3) 

Land 492,622 1,812,635 2,305,257 
Property and equipment 9,174,951 22,728,027 31,902,978 
Water rights stock 972,555 972,555 
Less: accumulated depreciation (4,166,158) (5,789,598) (9,955, 756) 

Total Capital Assets 5,501,415 19,723,619 25,225,034 

Total Assets 10,274,938 23 683,107 33,958,045 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 58,459 $ 68,982 $ 127,441 
Police bond account 4,130 4,130 
Due to other agencies 4,936 534 5,470 
Payroll taxes withheld and accrued 4,290 358 4,648 
Accrued interest expense 91,421 91,421 
Unearned lease revenues 82,800 82,800 
Current portion of notes payable (Notes 4 & 5) 41 5,000 415,000 

Total Current Liabilities 71,815 659,095 730,910 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Accrued compensated absences (Notes 1 & 5) 186,373 76,683 263,056 
Notes payable (Notes 4 & 5) 8,161 605 8,161,605 

Total Long-Term Liabilities 186,373 8,238,288 8 424 661 

Total Liabilities 258,188 8,897,383 9, 155,57 1 

Deferred inflow of resources 
Deferred tax revenues 664,973 664,973 

Net Position (Notes 1 & 6) 
Net investment in capital assets 5,501,415 11,147,014 16,648,429 
Restricted: 

Restricted for performance bond 88,756 88,756 
Restricted for Tricentennial celebration 3,096 3,096 
Restricted for emergency 123,575 123,575 
Restricted for park improvements and maintenance 92,637 92,637 
Restricted for police equipment 13, 117 13, 117 
Restricted for street improvements 711,127 711,127 
Restricted for fire equipment 218,739 218,739 

Restricted for debt service 236,185 236,185 
Unrestricted 2,599,315 3,402,525 6,001,840 

Total Net Position $ 9,351 777 $ 14,785,724 $ 24,1 37,501 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Pro9ram Revenues Net (Exeense) Revenue and Chan9es in Net Position 
Charges Operating Capital Prima~ Government 

for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type 
~enses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Functions/Programs 
Governmental Activities 

General Government $ 900,416 $ 21 ,531 $ (878,885) $ (878,885) 
Public Safety 987,518 70,890 $ 18,448 (898, 180) (898, 180) 
Public Works 1,204, 852 382,015 95,342 (727,495) (727,495) 
Culture and recreation 763,445 189,870 227,744 (345,831) (345,831) 

Total Governmental Activities 3,856,231 664,306 341,534 (2,850,391) (2,850,391) 

Business-Type Activities 
Water 1,080,245 896,206 $ (184,039) (184,039) 
Trash and Garbage 433,550 446,452 12,902 12,902 
Waste Water 1,749,903 1,534,081 (215,822) (215,822) 
Storm Water 206,686 312,556 105,870 105,870 

Total Business-Type Activities 3,470,384 3,189,295 (281,089) (281,089) 

Total Primary Government $ 7,326,615 $ 3,853,601 $ - $ 341 ,534 (2,850,391) (281 ,089) (3,131 ,480) 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

General Revenues 
Taxes 

Local property 
Specific ownership 
Franchise 
Sales 
Cigarette 

Other revenues 
Investment earnings 
Sale of property 
Transfers 

Total General Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, 
as previously reported 

Prior period adjustment 

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 

Net Position at End of Year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

-19-

$ 

630,340 630,340 
88,493 88,493 

257,768 257,768 
1,681,089 1,681,089 

6,177 6,177 
578,631 427, 162 1,005,793 

7,346 8,995 16,341 
5,920 5,920 

63,540 (63,540) 

3,319,304 372,617 3,691,921 

468,913 91,528 560,441 

8,882,864 14,681,835 23,564,699 
12,361 12,361 

8,882,864 14,694,196 23,577,060 

9,3_51,777 $ 14,785,724 $24, 137,501 



Assets 
Cash (Notes 1 & 2) 
Investments (Notes 1 & 2) 
Police bond cash (Notes 1 & 2) 

CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

BALANCE SHEET 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

December 31. 2014 

General 
Fund 

$ 375,541 
2,038,505 

4,130 
Cash on deposit with Morgan County Treasurer (Notes 1 & 2) 4,681 
Accrued interest revenue 1,182 
Accounts receivable (Note 1) 69,424 
General property taxes receivable 622,515 
Sales tax receivable 229,058 
Highway users tax receivable 10,726 
Due from other funds 130,000 
Inventory 36 886 

Total Assets $ 3,522,648 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 52,579 
Police bond account 4,130 
Due to other funds 
Due to other agencies 4,936 
Payroll taxes withheld and accrued 4 290 

Total Liabilities 65,935 

Deferred inflow of resources 
Deferred tax revenue 622,515 

Fund Equity 
Fund Balance (Notes 1 & 6) 

Nonspendable for inventory 36,886 
Restricted for performance bond 88,756 
Restricted for Tricentennial celebration 3,096 
Restricted for emergency 
Restricted for park improvements and maintenance 
Restricted for police equipment 
Restricted for street improvements 
Restricted for fire equipment 
Committed for park improvements 
Committed for cemetery maintenance 
Committed for emergency 
Committed for m ain street improvements 7,779 
Assigned for community enhancement 213,138 
Assigned for general equipment 118,672 
Unassigned 2,365,871 

Total Fund Equity 2,834,198 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of Resources and 
Fund Equity $ 3,522,648 

Other 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 164,165 
995, 181 

613 
132,647 
42,458 
45,811 

$ 1,380,875 

$ 5,880 

130,000 

135,880 

42,458 

123,575 
92,637 
13,11 7 

711,127 
218,739 

28,303 
11,997 

3,042 

1,202,537 

$ 1,380,875 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. (Note 3) 

Long-term liabilities including accrued compensated absences 
are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are 
not reported in the funds. 

Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

$ 539,706 
3,033,686 

4,130 
4,681 
1,795 

202,071 
664,973 
274,869 

10,726 
130,000 

36 886 

$ 4,903,523 

$ 58,459 
4,130 

130,000 
4,936 
4 290 

201,815 

664,973 

36,886 
88,756 

3,096 
123,575 
92,637 
13, 117 

711 , 127 
218,739 

28,303 
11,997 

3,042 
7,779 

213,138 
118,672 

2,365,871 

4 036,735 

5,501,415 

(186,373} 

$ 9 351 777 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Other Total 
General Governmental Governmental 

Fund Funds Funds 

Revenues 
Taxes $ 2,337,264 $ 326,603 $ 2,663,867 
Licenses and permits 36,392 36,392 
Intergovernmental revenue 340,854 184,214 525,068 
Charges for services 229,035 14,436 243,471 
Fines and forfeits 48,264 214 48,478 
Miscellaneous 691,267 47,141 738,408 

Total Revenues 3,683,076 572,608 4,255,684 

Expenditures 
General government 894,138 894,138 
Public safety 884,241 884,241 
Public works 840,516 134,744 975,260 
Culture and recreation 659,126 19,257 678,383 
Capital Outlay 268,460 404,515 672,975 

Total Expenditures 3,546,481 558,516 4,104,997 

Revenues in Excess of Expenditures 136,595 14,092 150,687 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Sale of property 5,920 5,920 
Transfer in 66,444 30,500 96,944 
Transfer out (30,500) (2,904) (33,404) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 41,864 27,596 69,460 

Net change in fund balances 178,459 41,688 220, 147 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 2,655,739 1,160,849 3,816,588 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 2,834,198 $ 1,202,537 $ 4,036,735 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN 
FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are different because: 

Net change in fund balances of governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Depreciation expense 
Capital outlays 

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses such as 
accrued compensated absences, are measured by the amounts incurred 
during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures for these 
items are measured by the amount of financial resources used 
(essentially, the amounts actually paid or accrued short term). This 
amount represents the net effect of long-term accrued compensated 
absences on the statement of activities. 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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$(420,073) 
672,975 

$ 220,147 

252,902 

(4,136) 

$ 468,913 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

December 31, 2014 

Business-Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Trash 
and Waste Storm 

Water Garbage Water Water 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

ASSETS 

Current Assets (Note 1 & 2) 
Cash (Notes 1 & 2) $78,698 $37,324 $57,439 $114,741 $288,202 
Investments (Notes 1 & 2) 980,320 200,000 1,641,183 450,182 3,271,685 
Accrued interest revenue 440 113 1,034 147 1,734 
Accounts receivable (Note 1) 319,723 1,929 498 1,712 323,862 
Other receivables 16,862 16,862 
Inventory (Note 1) 37,582 19,561 57,143 

Total Current Assets 1,433,625 258,927 1,700, 154 566,782 3,959,488 

Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 1 & 3) 
Land 1,091,760 1,475 719,400 1,812,635 
Buildings and improvements 170,477 170,477 
Water system 6,493,279 6,493,279 
Waste water plant and sewer 

system 13,494,345 13,494,345 
Equipment 590,697 359,967 430,603 1,061,373 2,442,640 
Office equipment 127,286 127,286 
Water rights stock 972,555 972,555 

Subtotal 9,446,054 361,442 14,644,348 1,061,373 25,513,217 
Less accumulated depreciation (3,739,069) (294,407) (1,495,517) (260,605) (5,789,598) 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment - Net 5,706,985 67,035 13,148,831 800,768 19,723,619 

Total Assets $ 7,140,610 $ 325,962 $ 14,848,985 $ 1,367,550 $ 23,683, 107 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Cont.) 

December 31, 2014 

Business-Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 

Trash 
and Waste Storm 

Water Garbage Water Water 

Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

Current Liabil ities 
Accounts payable $ 17,344 $ 7,925 $ 42,435 $ 1,278 $ 68,982 

Accrued interest payable 91,421 91,421 

Due to other entity 534 534 

Payroll taxes withheld 
and accrued 35 98 225 358 

Unearned lease revenues 82,800 82,800 

Note payable (Notes 4 & 5) 415,000 415,000 

Total Current Liabilities 100,179 8,023 549,615 1,278 659,095 

Long-Term Liabilities 
Accrued compensated 

absences (Note 5) 46,665 16,731 4,606 8,681 76,683 

Notes payable (Notes 4 & 5) 8, 161,605 8, 161,605 

Total Long-Term Liabi lities 46,665 16,731 8, 166,211 8,681 8,238,288 

Total Liabilities 146,844 24,754 8,715,826 9,959 8,897,383 

Net Position (Note 6) 
Net investment in capital assets 5,706,985 67,035 4,572,226 800,768 11,147,014 

Restricted for debt service (Note 4) 236, 185 236, 185 

Un restricted 1,286,781 234, 173 1,324,748 556,823 3,402,525 

Total Net position $6,993,766 $ 301,208 $ 6,133,159 $ 1,357,591 $ 14,785,724 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

-24-



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Business-Type Activities-
Enter,2rise Funds 

Trash 
and Waste Storm 

Water Garbage Water Water 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Operating Revenue 
Services $ 859,004 $ 427,526 $ 1,504,891 $ 309,026 $ 3, 100,447 
Sale of trash bags 139 139 
Sale of trash cans 7,700 7,700 
Administrative fees 27,956 75 28,031 
Storm water maintenance assessment 3,159 3,159 
Miscellaneous 9,246 11,087 29, 115 371 49,819 

Total Operating Revenue 896,206 446,452 1,534,081 312,556 3,189,295 

Operating Expense 
Cost of sales and services 623,359 331,473 589,495 119,469 1,663,796 
Administration 197,248 82,808 355,246 34,581 669,883 
Depreciation 220,702 19,269 297,729 52,636 590,336 

Total Operating Expense 1,041,309 433,550 1,242,470 206,686 2,924,015 

Income (Loss) (145,103) 12,902 291,611 105,870 265,280 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Interest on investments 3,670 338 4,203 784 8,995 

Joint venture 122,078 122,078 
Rental income 4,000 4,000 
Farm income 21,144 6,888 28,032 
Plant investment fee 105,000 105,000 
Water rights and credit leases 4,324 4,324 
Capacity and development fees 131 ,099 29,029 160,128 
County improvements (300,000) (300,000) 
DOW lease 3,600 3,600 
Water conservation (38,662) (38,662) 
Farm expense (274) (8,824) (9,098) 
Interest expense (Note 5) (198,609) (198,609) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 246,979 338 (358,313) 784 (110,212) 

Income (Loss) before transfers out 101,876 13,240 (66,702) 106,654 155,068 
Transfer out (18,640) (9,540) (32,095) (3,265) (63,540) 

Change in net position 83,236 3,700 (98,797) 103,389 91 ,528 

Net Position at beginning of year, 
as previously reported 6,910,530 285,147 6,231,956 1,254,202 14,681,835 

Prior period adjustment 12,361 12,361 

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 6,910,530 297,508 6,231,956 1,254,202 14,694,196 

Net Position - End of year $ 6,993,766 $ 301,208 $ 6,133,159 $ 1,357,591 $ 14,785,724 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Business - Type Activities 
Enter~rise Funds 

Trash 
and Waste Storm 

Water Garbage Water Water 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receipts from customers $ 909,916 $ 446,201 $ 1,544,585 $ 313,513 $ 3,214,215 
Cash payments to suppliers for 

goods and services (507,554) (218,417) (723,954) (102,120) (1,552,045) 
Cash payments to employees for 

services (308,200) (203,179) (216,063) (51, 106) (778,548) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 94, 162 24,605 604,568 160,287 883,622 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Special assessments 
Water conservation (38,662) (38,662) 
Transfers (18,640) (9,540) (32,095) (3,265) (63,540) 

Net cash used by noncapital 
financing activities (57,302) (9,540) (32,095) (3,265) (102,202) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Additions to capital assets (459,670) (21,897) (795,252) (1,276,819) 
Principal paid on debt (410,000) (410,000) 

Interest paid on debt (218,708) (218,708) 
Community donations 122,078 122,078 
Plant investment fee 105,000 105,000 
Capacity and development fee principal collections 131,099 29,095 160,194 
Water rights and credit leases 4,324 4,324 
County improvements (300,000) (300,000) 

Net cash used by capital 
and related financing activities (202,169) (21,897) (1 ,589,865) 0 (1,813,931) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Farm income/(loss) - net 20,870 2,064 22,934 

Interest received on investments 4,161 302 5,214 860 10,537 

Net cash provided by investing activities 25,031 302 7,278 860 33,471 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (140,278) (6,530) (1,010, 114) 157,882 (999,040) 

Cash & cash equivalents - beginning of year 1,199,296 243,854 2,708,736 407,041 4,558,927 

Cash & cash equivalents - end of year $ 1,059,018 $ 237,324 $ 1,698,622 $ 564,923 $ 3,559,887 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Operating Income (Loss) $ (145, 103) $ 12,902 $ 291,61 1 $ 105,870 $ 265,280 
Adjustment to reconcile 

operating income to net 
cash provided by operating activites: 

Depreciation 220,702 19,269 297,729 52,636 590,336 

Changes in assets and liabilities 
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable (1,885) (251) 10,504 957 9,325 
Decrease (Increase) in inventory 953 (6,660) (5,707) 
Decrease (Increase) in other receivables 15,594 15,594 
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable (3,636) (2,557) 8,710 164 2,681 
Increase (Decrease) in other liabilities 7,537 1,902 (3,986) 660 6, 113 

Total Adjustments 239,265 11,703 312,957 54,417 618,342 

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 94, 162 $ 24,605 $ 604,568 $ 160,287 $ 883,622 

The accompanying notes are an integal part of these statements. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the City of Brush, Colorado have been prepared in conformity 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The 
following summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist the reader in 
evaluating the City's financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present 
the City of Brush, Colorado (the primary government) and its component units. Component 
units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary 
government are financially accountable, or other organizations for which the nature and 
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would 
cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Based on the foregoing 
criteria, there are no component units included in the accompanying financial statements. 

B. Basic Financial Statements 

Basic financial statements are presented at both the government-wide and fund financial 
level. Both levels of statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or 
business-type. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely 
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

Government-wide financial statements report information about the reporting government as 
a whole. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. These statements focus on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the 
change in aggregate financial position resulting from the activities of the year. These 
aggregated statements consist of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or business-type activity are offset by program revenues . Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or business-type activity. Program 
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit 
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or business-type activity 
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or business type activity. Taxes and other items not 
included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Basic Financial Statements ( continued) 

Fund financial statements report information at the individual fund level. Each fund is 
considered to be a separate accounting entity. Funds are classified as govermnental, 
proprietary, and fiduciary. Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
Nomnajor funds are consolidated into a single column in the financial section of the basic 
financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The govermnent-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial 
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability 
is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized 
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. The City has collected nearly I 00% of all 
property taxes at December 31. Grants and similar items are recognized as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Govermnental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized 
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available 
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay 
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be 
available if they are collected within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are recorded 
when the related fund liability is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as well as 
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only 
when payment is due. 

Unearned revenues arise when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and 
"available" criteria for recognition in the cunent period. Unearned revenues also arise when 
resources are received by the City before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies 
are received prior to meeting eligibility requirements. In subsequent periods, when both 
revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the City has a legal claim to the resources, the 
liability for unearned revenue is removed and the revenue is recognized. 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future period(s) and so will not be recognized as 
an outflow ofresources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has no items that qualify 
for reporting in this category. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation ( continued) 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to future period(s) and will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has one item that 
qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item deferred tax revenues, is 
reported on both the statement of net position and the governmental funds balance sheet. 
These amounts are defe1Ted and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period for which 
they are levied and that the amounts become available. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period 
are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of 
the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund 

This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be reported in another fund. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Water Fund 

This fund was established to account for the operation of a City-owned and operated public 
water system. 

Waste Water Fund 

This fund was established to account for the operation of a City-owned and operated public 
sewer system. 

Trash and Garbage Fund 

This fund was established to provide for separate accountability of fees derived from the 
City-operated public trash system. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation ( continued) 

Storm Water Fund 

This fund was established to provide for separate accountability of fees derived for the 
use of street and storm sewer cleaning. 

Additionally, the City reports the following funds: 

Grant Fund 

This fund was established to account for the activity of federal and state grants. 

Special Surplus and Deficiency Fund 

This fund presently accounts for the emergency reserves required under the Tabor 
amendment (Note 7). 

Conservation Trust Fund 

This fund was established by the City to provide for an accounting of those funds received 
tlu·ough the State of Colorado Lottery Fund Program. The State requires that these funds 
be expended in the areas of parks and recreation development. 

Police Forfeiture and Confiscation Fund 

This fund is used to account for monies collected from the sale of evidence seized by the 
police department (Note 7). 

Capital Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for capital outlay acquisitions of the governmental fund types. 

Fire Equipment Improvement Fund 

This fund accounts for the acquisition of fire equipment and building improvements. 

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 

This fund is established to accumulate funds for the perpetual care and maintenance of the 
City's cemetery grounds. Current Council resolutions also allow capital purchases in this 
fund. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement 
Presentation ( continued) 

Joslin-Needham Fund 

This fund is established to provide for separate accountability of monies contributed to the 
City by the Joslin-Needham Family Foundation earmarked for pmiicular projects. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. 
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing 
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund 's principal ongoing operations. 
The principal operating revenues and expenses of the City's enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues 
and expenses. 

If both restricted and umestricted resources are available to use for the same purpose, it is 
the City's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are 
needed. 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government­
wide financial statements 

D. Budgets 

Amrnally appropriated budgets were adopted for all funds. Budgets are adopted on a basis 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles except for depreciation, debt 
service, and capital outlay. All governmental funds and proprietary funds are budgeted on 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. All appropriations lapse at year end. In the budget 
versus actual statements, the actual results of operations are presented on the budgetary basis 
of accounting for proper comparison to the budget. 

Colorado statutes provide the following timetable which is followed in the adoption of the 
budgets: 

(1) Submission of the proposed budget to the local governing body by October 15 
of each year. 

(2) Certification of mill levies to the Board of County Commissioners by 
December 15. 

(3) Final adoption of budget and appropriations by December 31 of each year. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Budgets (continued) 

(4) Prope1iy taxes are due by April 30 of each year if paid in full, or in two 
installments due February 28 and June 15 of each year. 

(5) Liens are placed on property for which taxes are delinquent in November of 
each year. 

The actual results of operations are presented in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, which differ in certain respects from those practices used in the 
preparation of the 2014 budget (Note 7). For purposes of preparing the Schedule of 
Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual , the actual results of operations have been 
adjusted to a basis consistent with the City's budgeted revenues and expenditures. 

E. Cash and Investments 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider cash on hand, 
demand deposits, and short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or 
less to be cash and cash equivalents (Note 2). 

F. lnterfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for 
goods provided or services rendered. Short-term interfund loans are classified as "due 
to/from other funds." All short-term interfund receivables and payables at year end are 
planned to be eliminated in the subsequent year. Long-tenn interfund loans are classified as 
"interfund note receivable/payable." Any residual balances outstanding between 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "internal balances." 

G. Inventories 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) 
method. The costs of governmental fund-type inventories are recorded as expenditures 
when purchased. 

H. Prepaid Items 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2014 
are recorded as prepaid items for enterprise funds. 

-32-



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

I. Encumbrances 

The City does not utilize encumbrance accounting. 

J. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. 
roads, sidewalks, street lights, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental 
or business-type activities colunms in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of five years. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated assets are recorded at 
estimated fair market value as of the date of the donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value or capacity of the 
asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets 
and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Depreciation on exhaustible assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of 
Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statements of Net Assets. A 
composite depreciation rate is used for infrastructure assets. Depreciation on the remaining 
capital assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings 
Improvements Other than Buildings 
Water Distribution System 
Sewer Collection System 
Machinery and Equipment 
Vehicles 
Infrastructure 

K. Compensated Absences 

25-50 years 
15-50 years 
10-50 years 
10-50 years 
5-20 years 
5-15 years 

20-80 years 

Accumulated vacation leave is rep01ied as a liability for all leave related to past employee 
service for which payment to the employee is considered probable. Vested vacation and sick 
pay benefits are accrued when incurred. A liability for unused sick leave benefits is accrued 
only if the employees are eligible or it is probable that the employee will be compensated for 
the benefits tlu·ough cash payments upon termination or retirement. The sick leave liability 
is estimated based on the City's assumptions concerning the probability for making 
payments for sick leave and its vested payment policy (vesting method). 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

K. Compensated Absences ( continued) 

Accumulated vacation leave and payments for sick leave that are expected to be liquidated 
with expendable available financial resources are repo1ted as an expenditure and a fund 
liability of the governmental fund that will pay the benefit. Accumulated vacation leave and 
sick leave termination payments for proprietary fund types are recorded as fund liabilities. 

L. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type 
statements of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over 
the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from 
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are repoited 
as other financing uses. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expendihH"es. 

M. Interfund Transactions 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. 
Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditure/expenses initially 
made from it that are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as 
expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures/expenses 
in the fund that is reimbursed. 

All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are 
reported as transfers. Nonrecurring or nomoutine permanent transfers of equity are reported 
as residual equity transfers. All other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers 
(Note 12). 

N. Net Position 

Net Position comprise the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating 
revenues and expenses, and capital contributions. Net position is classified in the following 
three components: 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

N. Net Position (continued) 

Net investment in capital assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, 
mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year­
end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the 
calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in 
the same net position component as the w1spent proceeds. 

Restricted - This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors 
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 

Unrestricted - This component of net postion consists of net position that do not meet the 
definition of "restricted" or "net investment in capital assets." 

0. Fund Balance Classifications 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued Statement No. 54, Fund 
Balance Report;ng and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This Statement defines the 
different types of fund balances that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting 
pu1poses. 

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the fund 
balance categories listed below. 

Nonspendable, such as fund balance associated with inventories, prepaid expenditures, long­
term loans and notes receivable, and property held for resale (unless the proceeds are 
restricted, committed or assigned), 

Restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific 
purposes stipulated by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling 
legislation. 

Committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the 
specific purposes determined by a fonnal action of the city council (the City's highest level 
of decision-making authority), 

Assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed, and 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

0. Fund Balance Classifications (continued) 

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the City's general fund and 
includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. 

Committed fimd balance is established by a formal passage of a resolution. This is typically 
done through the adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance commitment is 
further indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund . 
Assigned fund balance is established by the city council through adoption or amendment of 
the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as purchase of fixed assets, construction, 
debt service or for other purposes). 

When both restricted and umestricted resources are available in governmental funds, the 
City applies expenditures against restricted fund balance first, and followed by committed 
fund balance, assigned fimd balance and unassigned fund balance. 

P. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance. with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates that affect amounts reported in the 
financial statements during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from such 
estimates. 

Note 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Deposits 

Colorado State statutes govern the City's deposit of cash. The Public Deposit Protection 
Acts (PDPA) for banks and savings and loans require state regulators to certify eligible 
depositories for public deposits. The PDPA require eligible depositories with public 
deposits in excess of federal insurance levels to create a single institution collateral pool of 
defined eligible assets. Eligible collateral includes obligations of the Unites States, 
obligations of the State of Colorado or Colorado local governments and obligations secured 
by first lien mortgages on real property located in the state. The pool is to be maintained by 
another institution or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits as a group and not held in 
any individual goverrunent's name. The fair value of the assets in the pool must be at least 
equal to 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a 
bank failure, the City's deposits might not be returned to it. The City does not have deposit 
policy for custodial credit risk. As of year-end, the City had total deposits of $6,683,413, of 
which $750,000 was insured and $5,933,413 was collateralized with securities held by the 
pledging institution's trust department or agent in the City's name. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS ( continued) 

At year-end, the City had the following investments: 

Investment maturities (in years) 

Investment type 

Investment in certificate 

of deposits 

Investment in CSAFE 

Totals 

Fair Value 

$ 5,303,979 $ 

1,001,392 

$ 6,305,371 $ 

Less 

than 1 

5,303,979 

1,001,392 

6,305,371 

$ 

$ 

1-5 6-10 

$ 

$ 

State law limits investments in commercial paper, corporate bonds, and mutual bond funds 
to the highest rating from at least on nationally recognized rating agency at the time of 
purchase. The City has no investment policy that would fu1ther limit its investment choices. 
At year-end, the City's investment in CSAFE was rate AAAm by Standard and Poor's and 
AAA by Moody's rating services. 

Note 3: CAPITAL ASSETS 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities 
General Goverrunent 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Culture and Recreation 

Total Governmental Activities 

Business-type Activities 
Water 
Trash and Garbage 

Waste Water 
Storm Water 

Total Business-type Activities 
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9,126 
96,975 

233,202 
80,770 

420,073 

220,702 
19,269 

297,729 
52,636 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

Note 3: CAPITAL ASSETS ( continued) 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows: 

Balance Additions Thletions Balance 

Dx:eirber 31, and and Ikeirber 31, 

2013 Adjusllrnnts Adj Ll511rnnts 2014 

Gwemnental Activities 

Non-depreciable assets: 

Land $ 492,622 $ 492,622 

Thpreciable as.sets: 

Building;:; 1,645,583 $ 50,999 1,696,582 

P.quip1rent 2,200,096 64,840 $ (11 ,438) 2,253,498 

Vehicles 1,065,849 104,320 (72,617) l,(J)7,552 

Infrastructure 3,297,750 95,459 3,393,2(1) 

Land improvetrents 358,018 357,357 715,375 

O:her 18,735 18,735 

Less Accwnttlated Thpreciation (3,830, 140) (420,073) 84,055 (4,166,158) 

l'*t Thpreciable Glpital Assets 4,755,891 252,902 5,008,793 

Total Gove111Jrental Activities $ 5,248,513 $ 252,902 $ $ 5,501 ,415 

Business-T~ Activities 

l\bn-depreciable assets: 

Land $ 827,690 984,945 $ 1,812,635 

'Miter rigj1t stocks 972,555 972,555 

Total non-depreciable assets 1,800,245 984,945 2,785,190 

Building;:; 161,321 9,156 170,477 

P.quipnent 2,583,913 21,896 2,ffi5,8(J) 

Syste1rs 19,690,938 2ffi,802 19,951,740 

Less Accumulated Depreciation (5,199,261) (590,336) (5,789,597) 

J\k!t l);:preciable Glpital As.sets 17,236,911 (298,482) 16,938,429 

Total Business--Type Activities $ 19,037, 156 $ 686,463 $ $ 19,723,619 
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Note 4: BONDS/NOTES PAYABLE 

Business-Type Activities 

Waste Water Fund - Note 

During 2010 the City received a $9,465,000 loan from the Colorado Water Resources and 
Power Development Authority. Details of the note are as follows: 

REPAYMENT PRINCIPAL INTEREST AND TOTAL LOAN 

DATE BALANCE FEES REPAYMENT 

2015 415,000.00 212,742.91 627,742.91 

2016 425,000.00 203,466.17 628,466.17 

2017 430,000.00 199,238.95 629,238.95 

2018 435,000.00 191,727.53 626,727.53 

2019 445,000.00 180,702.71 625,702.71 

2020 455,000.00 170,243.61 625,243.61 

2021 465,000.00 160,193.75 625,193.75 

2022 475,000.00 150,054.71 625,054.71 

2023 485,000.00 144,985.71 629,985.71 

2024 485,000.00 140,290.71 625,290.71 

2025 490,000.00 135,401.52 625,401.52 

2026 500,000.00 126,556.04 626,556.04 

2027 510,000.00 117,919.44 627,919.44 

2028 520,000.00 109,471.18 629,471.18 

2029 545,000.00 82,295.44 627,295.44 

2030 575,000.00 55,031.96 630,031.96 

2031 600,000.00 27,594.72 627,594.72 

$ 8,255,000.00 $ 2,407,917 .06 $ 10,662,917.06 

Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1, and August 1 beginning February 1, 2011. 

The City may prepay the loan repayments, in whole or in part (but if in part, in the amount 
of $100,000 or any integral multiple of $100,000) upon prior written notice of not Jess than 
ninety days. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST A TEMENTS 

Note 4: BONDS/NOTES PAYABLE (continued) 

The loan agreement with Colorado Water Resources and Power Development Authority 
contains several covenants including the establishment and maintenance of an operations 
and maintenance reserve fund in an amount equal to tlll'ee months of operation and 
maintenance expenses. The City has restricted $236, 185 of net position in satisfaction of the 
tlu·ee month renewal and maintenance reserve requirement at year-end. The City must also 
maintain waste water rates, fees and other charges that will cover operation and maintenance 
expenses and at least 110% of debt services for the calendar year. The City not met this 
requirement for the year ended December 31, 2014. 

Note 5: CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a sunm1ary of changes in the City's long-term debt for the year ended 
December 31, 2014: 

G>vemmental activities 
Compensated aa;ences 

piyable 

Business-type activities 
Compensated aa;ences 

piyable 
PremilUn on notes payable 
l\Dtes payable 

Balance 
D!cember 31, 

2013 

$ 182,237 

$ 70,784 
340,71 1 

8,665,000 

Total Business-type activities $ 9,076,495 

Additions 

$ 4,136 

$ 5,899 

$ 5,899 

Retirerrents 

$ 19,106 
410,000 

$ 429,106 

Balance 
D!cember 31, 

2014 

$ 186,373 

$ 76,683 
321,605 

8,255,000 

$ 8,653,288 

U1e Within 
Q1eYear 

415,000 

$ 415,000 

For the governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the 
general fund. The total amount of interest cost incurred and expensed was $198,609. 

Note 6: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

On November 3, 1992, the voters of Colorado approved Amendment 1, commonly 
lmown as the TABOR Amendment, which adds a new Section 20 to Article X of the 
Colorado Constitution. TABOR contains tax, spending, revenue and debt limitations which 
apply to the State of Colorado, all local governments, and special districts. In November 
2000, the City's electorate approved a resolution to permit the City to retain, appropriate, 
and utilize, by retention for reserve, carryover fund balance, or expenditure, the full proceeds 
and revenues received from eve1y source whatever, without limitation, in 2000 and all 
subsequent years, notwithstanding any limitation of Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution, provided however, that no local tax rate or property mill levy shall be 
increased at any time, nor shall any new tax be imposed, without the prior consent of voters 
of the City. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 6: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

TABOR is extremely complex and subject to interpretation. Ultimate implementation may 
depend upon litigation and legislative guidance. 

The City has made the following fund balance restriction as a result of Article X, Section 
20 (TABOR) of the Colorado Constitution. 

Emergency Reserve 
The Article requires an emergency reserve be set aside for 2014 in the amount of 3% or 
more of its fiscal year spending. At December 31, 2014, the City has restricted fund balance 
of $123,575 in the Special Surplus and Deficiency Fund for emergencies. The City believes 
it is in compliance with the provisions of the TABOR Amendment. 

In addition, the General Fund ending fund balance is restricted in the amount of $3,096 for 
funds held on behalf of the City of Brush Bi-Centennial Committee. 

The City has received a settlement payment from a performance bond provided by a 
developer in the Rosewood Subdivision. The settlement payment is to be used for the 
completion/development of the subdivision. At December 31, 2014 the balance of the funds 
earmarked for the subdivision was $88,756. 

The City presently levies a three and six-tenths percent (3.6%) sales tax. The sales tax is 
collected by the Colorado Department of Revenue and remitted to the City in the month 
following receipt by the Department of Revenue. The Depaiiment of Revenue receives the 
sales tax approximately one month after collection by the vendors. The citizens of Brush 
passed a ballot initiative for an increase of sales tax in November of 2006, increasing the 
sales tax rate by six-tenths of a percent from the previous three percent. The 2007 increase 
is specifically for street maintenance, improvements, and other related municipal pmposes. 
The money is to be deposited in the capital improvement fund . All amounts not spent at 
year-end are restricted for the purposes designated by the legislation. At December 31 , 2014 
the amount of fund balance restricted for street maintenance was $711 , 127. This amount is 
restricted by enabling legislation. 

The City receives monies from the State under the Colorado lottery program to be spent for 
park and recreation purposes only. At December 31, 2014 the amount of fund balance 
restricted for park maintenance and improvements was $92,637. 

The City has received fund from drug related court cases which the police department has 
been involved in. By state statute, expense is to be used for police equipment replacement. 
At December 31 , 2014 the amount of fund balance restricted for park maintenance and 
improvements was $13,117. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 6: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued) 

The City has established a separate mill levy for the sole purpose of creating a financing 
mechanism for the purchase of fire fighting vehicles and related safety equipment. At 
December 31, 2014, the amount of fund balance restricted for fire equipment was $218,739. 

Note 7: BUDGETARY DATA 

The actual results of operations are presented in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles which differ in ce1iain respects from those practices used in the 
preparation of the 2014 budget. For purposes of preparing the Statements of Revenues, and 
Expenditures - Budget and Actual, the actual results of operations have been adjusted to a 
basis consistent with the City's budgeted revenues and expenditures. Adjustments necessary 
to convert the net income/revenues in excess of expenditures at the end of year on the GAAP 
basis to the budgetary basis are as follows: 

Proprietaty Fund T~ 
Trash and Waste Stonn 

Water Gn:bage Water Water 
Fund Fund Fund Fund 

l\et Incorre (Loss) GAAP $ 83,236 $ 3,700 $ (98,797) $ 103,389 
Increase (Dxrease) due to: 
Thpreciation and anortization 220,7CJ2 19,269 297,729 52,636 
Thbt se1vioo-princiµtl (410,000) 
Capitalized interest 
Anrntized premium (19,105) 
Accmed interest (994) 
Capital OJtlay (459,670) (21,896) (795,232) 
Budgetaiy Basis $ (155,732) $ 1,073 $ (l,CJ26,399) $ 156,025 

The City may authorize Supplemental appropriations during the budget year. During 2014, 
the following supplemental appropriations were enacted. 

Water Fund 
Waste Water Fund 
Joslin-Needham Fund 

Totals 

Fund 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 8: PENSION FUNDS 

Policemen Pension Fund - F.P.P.A. 

The City contributes to the Statewide Defined Benefit Plan, a cost-sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Colorado Fire and Police 
Pension Association. The Statewide Defined Benefit Plan provides retirement benefits 
for members and beneficiaries. Death and disability coverage is provided for members 
tlu·ough the Statewide Death and Disability Plan which is also administered by the 
Colorado Fire and Police Pension Association. The Statewide Death and Disability 
Plan is a non-contributory plan. All full-time, paid police officers of the City are 
members of the Statewide Defined Benefit Plan and the Statewide Death and Disability 
Plan. Title 31, Article 30 of the Colorado Revised Statutes (CRS), as amended, 
assigns the authority to establish benefit provisions to the state legislature. FPP A 
issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary infon11ation for both the Statewide Defined Benefit Plan and the 
Statewide Death and Disability Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to FPP A of 
Colorado, 5290 DTC Parkway, Suite 100, Englewood, Colorado 80111 or by calling FPPA 
at 770-3772 in the Denver Metro area, or 1-800-332-FPPA (3772) from outside the metro 
area. 

Plan members and the City are required to contribute at a rate set by statute. The 
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established under Title 31, 
Article 30, Part 10 of the CRS, as amended. The contribution rate for members is 8.0% of 
covered salary and for the City is 8.0% of covered salary. The City made the required 
contributions of $29,759, $30,288, and $30,666, to the Statewide Defined Benefit Plan 
for the year ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, equal to their required 
contributions. 

Volunteer Firemen's Pension Fund - FPPA Administered 

Plan Description - The Fire and Police Pension Association (FPP A) administers a single­
employer public employee retirement system (PERS) established for the City of Brush 
Volunteer Firefighters. The Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) provides 
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. In 2014 the regular benefit was 
$260 per month. A participant becomes fully vested after 20 years of active service and 
reaching age 50. Pre-retirement death and disability benefits are only available if incurred 
in the line of duty. The plan also provides for a lump-sum burial benefit upon the death of 
an active or retired firefighter. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are 
established by the local pension board. FPP A issues independent annual repmts. The report 
may be obtained by writing to FPPA of Colorado, 5290 DTC Parkway, Suite 100, 
Englewood, Colorado 80111 or by calling FPP A at 770-3 772 in the Denver Metro area, or 
1-800-332-FPPA (3772) from outside the metro area. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 8: PENSION FUNDS (continued) 

In 2004 the City of Brush and the Brush Rural Fire Protection District created a new 
combined entity for the Firemen's Pension retirement fund, which is administered by 
PPP A. The new entity files an annual report with the Colorado State Auditor's office. A 
copy of this report can be obtained by writing to the City of Brush, 600 Edison, Brush, CO 
80723 or by calling 970-842-5001. 

In 2014 the City contributed $18,687 to the plan and the State of Colorado made a 
contribution of$15,550 to FPPA for the plan. 

City of Brush, Colorado Money Purchase Pension Plan 

The City participates in a defined contribution money purchase retirement plan for all 
employees (not covered by the police pension fund), age 18 or over with 12 months of 
service (1000 hours minimum). Under the plan, administrated by Great West Retirement, 
the City is required to contribute 5% of covered employees salary. The covered payroll 
during 2014 was $1,133,336 with total payroll of $2,090,594. Contributions by the City 
were $56,667. Vesting begins at two years with 20% and continues at 20% per year until 
fully vested in year six. 

Note 9: DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years . The deferred compensation is not 
available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable 
emergency. 

In 1998 this plan moved all assets into a trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants 
and their beneficiaries, as required by the Internal Revenue Code. 

Note 10: RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City 
participates in the Colorado Intergovernmental Risk Sharing Agency (herewith referred 
to as "CIRSA"). CIRSA is a separate legal entity established by member municipalities 
pursuant to the provisions of Colorado Revised Statute and the Colorado Constitution. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 10: RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 

The purposes of CIRSA are to provide members defined liability and property 
coverages and to assist members to prevent and reduce losses and injuries to municipal 
property and to person or prope1iy which might result in claims being made against 
members of CIRSA, their employees or officers. 

The City recognized as an expense/expenditure the amounts paid to CIRSA annually in the 
amounts of $158,702 for the Worker's Compensation Pool and $126,364 for the 
Property/Casualty Pool. Contingent liability claims for the coverage have not been 
recognized to date after reviewing claim history and the remoteness of potential loss in 
excess of actual contributions by the City. 

It is the intent of the members of CIRSA to create an entity in perpetuity which will 
administer and use funds contributed by the members to defend and indemnify, in 
accordance with the bylaws, any member of CIRSA against stated liability or loss to 
the limit of the financial resources of CIRSA. It is also the intent of the members to 
have CIRSA provide continuing stability and availability of needed coverage at 
reasonable costs. All income and assets of CIRSA shall be at all times dedicated to the 
exclusive benefit of its members. 

CIRSA is a separate legal entity and the City does not approve its budgets nor does 
it have the ability to significantly affect the operations of the unit. CIRSA is affiliated 
and shares facilities with Colorado Intergovenunental Risk Sharing Agency for 
Worker's Compensation (CIRSA/WC). 

The City carries airport liability and boiler and machinery coverage tlu·ough commercial 
can1ers. 

Note 11: GRANTS 

The City receives financial assistance from various governmental agencies 111 the 
form of grants. The disbursement of funds received under these programs 
generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant 
agreements and is subject to audit by the granter agencies. Any disallowed claims 
resulting from such audit could become a liability of the City. However in the opinion of 
the City, any such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on the financial 
statements or on the overall financial position of the City at December 31, 2014. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 12: INTERFUND TRANSFERS AND BALANCES 

All interfund transfers are as follows : 

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount 

General Fund Other Govermnental Funds $ 2,904 

Other Governmental Funds General Fund 30,500 

General Fund Water Fund 18,640 

General Fund Trash & Garbage Fund 9,540 

General Fund Waste Water Fund 32,095 

General Fund Storm Water Fund 3,265 

$ 96,944 

The transfer between the General Fund and Other Governmental Funds is for a one-time 
assistance for repairs to the fire station, earnings on Cemetery Perpetual Care investments 
and the transfer of remaining amounts in the Grant Fund to the General Fund. The transfer 
from the enterprise funds to the General Fund are annual transfers for community 
enhancement projects which includes the City's economic development efforts. 

The following is a summary of interfund borrowings and transfers for the year as presented 
in the fund financial statements: 

Due From Due To Amount 

General Fund Grants Fund $ 130,000 

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund reimbursable 
expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) 
payments between funds are made. 

Note 13: OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS 

Conduit Debt 

Financing Agreement 
On March 1, 1997, the City of Brush provided for the advance refunding of the 1985 
Series Industrial Development Revenue Bond with the issuance of a $8,964,000, 1997 
Series Industrial Development Revenue Bond (Training Centers International, Ltd.) 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 13: OTHER SIGNIFICANT MATTERS (continued) 

The bonds and interest appurtenant thereto do not constitute debt or indebtedness of the 
City under Colorado law and shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of 
the City or a charge against its general credit or taxing powers. 

Other Financing Agreement 
On October 21, 1994, the City of Brush provided for the issuance of a $6,065,000, 1994 
Series Industrial Development Revenue Bond (Eben Ezer Lutheran Care Center). 

On August 9, 2004, the City of Brush provided for the issuance of a $5,450,000, 2004A 
and B Series Industrial Development Revenue Bond (Eben Ezer Lutheran Care Center). 
The issuance of these bonds was for the repayment of the 1994 Series Industrial 
Development Revenue Bond. 

The bonds and interest appurtenant thereto do not constitute debt or indebtedness of the 
City under Colorado law and shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of 
the City or a charge against its general credit or taxing powers. 

Note 14: PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

Adjustments have been made to the fund balance of the Trash and Garbage Fund in the 
amount of $12,361 to correct errors in the prior period financial statements. The ending 
inventory was understated and expenses overstated in the prior year. An adjustment has 
also been made to the net position balance of the Business-Type Activities in the amount of 
$12,3 61 related to the above corrections. 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues 
Taxes 

Current property (Net of 
Treasurer's fees of $11,835) $ 589,170 $ 589,170 $ 590,091 $ 921 

Specific ownership 80,000 80,000 88,493 8,493 
Sales 1,275,000 1,275,000 1,391,524 116,524 
Use 8,000 8,000 9,388 1,388 
Gas occupation 10,000 10,000 10,000 

Total 1,962,170 1,962, 170 2,089,496 127,326 

Franchise 
Gas and electric 170,000 170,000 206,986 36,986 
Telephone 5,000 5,000 4,721 (279) 
Television cable 33,000 33,000 36,061 3,061 

Total 208,000 208,000 247,768 39,768 

Licenses and permits 
Liquor 8,000 8,000 9,485 1,485 
Amusement 1,000 1,000 630 (370) 
Building and plumbing 16,000 16,000 20, 131 4,131 
Animal and miscellaneous 7,300 7,300 6,146 (1, 154} 

Total 32,300 32,300 36,392 4,092 

Intergovernmental revenue 
Highway user's tax 130,000 130,000 143,721 13,721 
Severance tax 20,000 20,000 47,992 27,992 
State FPPA contribution 15, 190 15,190 (15,190) 
Payment in lieu of taxes 5,200 5,200 6,834 1,634 
Morgan County - road fund rebate 108,000 108,000 130,818 22,818 
State Highway 34 maintenance 6,125 6,125 6,125 
School Liaison 5,364 5,364 

Total 284,515 284,515 340,854 56,339 

Charges for services 
Zoning 500 500 1,400 900 
Cemetery 26,500 26,500 37,765 11,265 
Swimming pool 26,000 26,000 17,934 (8,066) 
Other recreation activities 109,800 122,300 138,944 16,644 
Picnic shelters 5,800 5,800 8,921 3, 121 
Camping fees 8,000 8,000 24,071 16,071 

Total $ 176,600 $ 189,100 $ 229,035 $ 39,935 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Continued) 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable} 

Fines and forfeits 
Court $ 70,300 $ 70,300 $ 48,264 $ (22,036) 

Miscellaneous 
Interest 5,150 5,150 5,205 55 
Farm income 2,040 2,040 2,040 
Airport rent 500 500 475 (25) 
Administrative fees 519,435 519,435 519,435 
Grant income 99,000 99,000 106,956 7,956 
Special events 5,000 5,000 (5,000) 
Donations 100 100 4,650 4,550 
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000 52,506 42,506 

Total 641,225 641,225 691,267 50,042 

Total Revenues 3,375, 110 3,387,610 3,683,076 295,466 

Expenditures (See Schedules) 
General government 931,565 931,565 899,438 32,127 
Public safety 1,180,060 1, 180,060 968,975 211 ,085 
Public works 1,230,890 1,230,890 959,140 271,750 
Culture and recreation 862,530 862,530 718,928 143,602 

Total Expenditures 4,205,045 4,205,045 3,546,481 658,564 

Revenues in Excess (Deficiency) 
of Expenditures (829,935} (817,435} 136,595 954,030 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Sale of property 5,920 5,920 
Transfer In 410,492 410,492 66,444 (344,048) 
Transfer Out {366,590} {366,590} {30,500} 336,090 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 43,902 43,902 41,864 (2,038} 

Net change in fund balance $ (786,033} $ (773,533} 178,459 $ 951,992 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 2,655,739 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 2,834, 198 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual {Unfavorable) 

General Government 
Legislative 

Personal services 
Council salaries $ 22,500 $ 22,500 $ 21,900 $ 600 
Retirement and fringe benefits 2,000 2,000 1,947 53 

Travel 6,000 6,000 7,888 (1,888) 
Dues 314 (314) 
Computer maintenance 2,070 2,070 1,311 759 

Total 32,570 32,570 33,360 {790) 

City Clerk 
Personal services 

Clerk's salary 44,030 44,030 43,928 102 
Retirement and fringe benefits 12,980 12,980 12,891 89 

Supplies 500 500 109 391 
Telephone 50 50 6 44 
Dues 310 310 305 5 
Travel 2,000 2,000 1,048 952 
Advertising 250 250 250 
Elections 4,000 4,000 1,869 2,131 
Records management 6,200 6,200 3,289 2,911 

Total 70,320 70,320 63,445 6,875 

Executive 
Personal services 

Mayor's salary 7,800 7,800 7,800 
Retirement and fringe benefits 645 645 642 3 

Dues 800 800 800 
Travel 1,500 1,500 2,092 (592) 
Computer maintenance 345 345 200 145 

Total 11,090 11,090 10,734 356 

City Administrator 
Personal services 

Salaries 92,820 92,820 92,820 
Retirement and fringe benefits 27,470 27,470 30,927 (3,457) 

Telephone 1,700 1,700 1,671 29 
Dues 3,100 3,100 1,377 1,723 
Travel 3,700 3,700 2,973 727 
Fuel and oil 750 750 747 3 
Repairs and maintenance 650 650 117 533 

Total $ 130, 190 $ 130, 190 $ 130,632 $ {442) 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

General Government (continued) 
Administration 

Personal services 
Salaries $ 142,080 $ 142,080 $ 141,576 $ 504 
Retirement and fringe benefits 52,600 52,600 52,249 351 

Supplies 16,500 16,500 11,973 4,527 
Professional services 50,500 50,500 55,809 (5,309) 
Pension contributions 32,075 32,075 18,687 13,388 
Telephone 4,500 4,500 5,088 (588) 
Utilities 12,000 12,000 9,663 2,337 
Dues 4,000 4,000 3,178 822 
Travel and training 4,000 4,000 2,318 1,682 
Advertising 4,500 4,500 3,797 703 
Insurance and bonds - general 61,645 61,645 62,632 (987) 
Radio and computer maintenance 7,600 7,600 6,709 891 
Contributions 22,500 22,500 30,375 (7,875) 
Employee incentive program 12,500 12,500 22,989 (10,489) 
Repairs and maintenance - auto 300 300 207 93 

Total 427,300 427,300 427,250 50 

Community Development 
Personal services 

Salaries 76,505 76,505 75,657 848 
Retirement and fringe benefits 17,130 17, 130 16,596 534 

Supplies 1,800 1,800 1,183 617 
Professional services 29,500 29,500 12,456 17,044 
Telephone 250 250 264 (14) 
Dues 1,250 1,250 1,345 (95) 
Travel and training 2,900 2,900 2,830 70 
Building and radio maintenance 7,310 7,310 2,644 4,666 
Tree board 5,000 5,000 2,553 2,447 
Community outreach 40,000 40,000 37,348 2,652 
Fuel and oil - auto 550 550 267 283 
Repairs and maintenance - auto 300 300 105 195 
Capital outlay - Bu ildings 5,300 (5,300} 

Total 182,495 182,495 158,548 23,947 

Marketing 
Personal services 

Salaries 37,000 37,000 37,000 
Retirement and fringe benefits 20,500 20,500 20,176 324 

Supplies 3,275 3,275 965 2,310 
Telephone 250 250 30 220 
Dues 775 775 775 
Travel and training 3,500 3,500 2,161 1,339 
Economic Deveopment 11,500 11,500 14,617 (3,117) 
F'uel and oil - auto 600 600 476 124 
Repairs and maintenance - auto 200 200 44 156 

Total 77,600 77,600 75,469 2,131 

Total General Government $ 931,565 $ 931,565 $ 899,438 $ 32, 127 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Public Safety 
Police 

Personal services 
Salaries - permanent $ 485,200 $ 485,200 $ 419,521 $ 65,679 
Salaries - clerical and code enforcer 82,860 82,860 76,617 6,243 
Retirement and fringe benefits 254,730 254,730 220,831 33,899 

Supplies 28,800 28,800 10,623 18,177 
Legal fees 20,000 20,000 12,752 7,248 
Professional services 5,300 5.300 3,321 1,979 
Telephone 4,500 4,500 6,259 (1, 759) 
Utilities 13,000 13,000 11 ,071 1,929 
Dues 1,400 1,400 210 1,190 
Travel and training 16,000 16,000 10,552 5,448 
Repairs and maintenance - general 22,500 22,500 14,737 7,763 
Recruiting 1,800 1,800 2,004 (204) 
Animal control 10,350 10,350 2,832 7,518 
Investigations 9,000 9,000 2,864 6,136 
School liaison 1,700 1,700 639 1,061 
Policing and emergency services 3,000 3,000 898 2,102 
Fuel and oil 34,000 34,000 21,474 12,526 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicles 18,500 18,500 10,237 8,263 
Capital outlay - vehicles & radios 76,000 76,000 84,734 (8,734) 

Total 1,088,640 1,088,640 912,176 176,464 

Fire Department 
Personal services 

Fringe benefits 970 970 968 2 
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 21,300 21,300 24,513 (3,213) 
Telephone 5,000 5,000 3,386 1,614 
Utilities 9,500 9,500 6,085 3,415 
Professional services 1,500 1,500 385 1, 115 
Dues 900 . 900 823 77 
Travel and tra ining 10,000 10,000 5,872 4,128 
Building maintenance 7,000 7,000 6,077 923 
Fireworks 9,000 9,000 9,000 
Radio and computer maintenance 7,250 7,250 3,831 3,419 
Fuel and oil 6,000 6,000 3,292 2,708 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicles 13,000 13,000 1,567 11,433 

Total 91,420 91,420 56,799 34,621 

Total Public Safety $ 1, 180,060 $ 1,180,060 $ 968,975 $ 211,085 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Public Works 
Streets 

Personal services 
Salaries $ 268,200 $ 268,200 $ 264,862 $ 3,338 
Retirement and fringe benefits 169,730 169,730 163,276 6,454 

Supplies 31,100 31, 100 26,730 4,370 
Professional services 3,000 3,000 454 2,546 
Medical 1,000 1,000 235 765 
Telephone 800 800 981 (181) 
Electrical - street lights 95,000 95,000 93,774 1,226 
Dues 200 200 200 
Travel and training 5,000 5,000 1,482 3,518 
Advertis ing 200 200 98 102 
Building maintenance 3,000 3,000 470 2,530 
Radio maintenance 800 800 1,465 (665) 
Street repair 37,000 37,000 31,025 5,975 
Forestry 4,000 4,000 1,763 2,237 
Alley maintenance 1,000 1,000 862 138 
Sidewalk maintenance 2,000 2,000 75 1,925 
Pest and weed abatement 42,000 42,000 43,445 (1,445) 
Fuel and oil 32,000 32,000 32,285 (285) 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 59,500 59,500 34,116 25,384 
Christmas lights 800 800 1,524 (724) 
Snow removal 12,500 12,500 9,728 2,772 
Capital Outlay - Streets and equipment 195,000 195,000 35,637 159,363 

Total 963,830 963,830 744,287 219,543 

Airport Facilities 
Supplies 5,000 5,000 281 4,719 
Professional services 17,000 17,000 3,061 13,939 
Electric 800 800 491 309 
Building maintenance 3,000 3,000 315 2,685 
Insurance 3,100 3,100 2,125 975 
Runway repairs 12,000 12,000 14,000 (2,000) 
Capital Outlay - Runway 100,000 100,000 82,987 17,013 

Total 140,900 140,900 103,260 37,640 

Cemetery 
Personal services 

Salaries 51,215 51,215 55,772 (4,557) 
Retirement and fringe benefits 32,595 32,595 22,263 10,332 

Supplies 22,200 22,200 15,314 6,886 
Medical 600 600 465 135 
Utilities 5,200 5,200 3,797 1,403 
Dues 100 100 75 25 
Travel and training 650 650 100 550 
Advertising 600 600 557 43 
Foundations and burial service 3,000 3,000 2,343 657 
Fuel and oil 6,000 6,000 8,923 (2,923) 
Repairs and maintenance 4,000 4,000 1,984 2,016 

Total 126,160 126,160 111,593 14,567 

Total Public Works $ 1,230,890 $ 1,230,890 $ 959,140 $ 271,750 
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GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 

Culture and Recreation 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Swimming pool and other 
Personal services 

Salaries $ 246,010 $ 246,010 $ 216,676 $ 29,334 
Retirement and fringe benefits 59,955 59,955 56,628 3,327 

Supplies 4,500 4,500 5,797 (1,297) 
Medical 465 (465) 
Telephone 2,500 2,500 1,792 708 
Utilities 5,500 5,500 2,771 2,729 
Dues 650 650 159 491 
Travel and train ing 3,000 3,000 584 2,416 
Advertising 1,000 1,000 90 910 
Building and field maintenance 21,600 21,600 10,429 11, 171 
Copy/Computer rnaintenace 3,500 3,500 4,938 (1,438) 
Adu lt summer programs 2,000 2,000 1,786 214 
Youth summer programs 37,850 37,850 28,964 8,886 
Adult winter programs 775 775 341 434 
Youth winter programs 11,700 11,700 13,983 (2,283) 
Swimming pool programs 42,950 42,950 45,826 (2,876) 
Special events programs 111,000 111,000 56,517 54,483 
Fuel and oil 1,700 1,700 1,224 476 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 1, 100 1,100 709 391 

Total 557,290 557,290 449,679 107,611 

Parks 
Personal services 

Salaries 105,745 105,745 99,085 6,660 
Retirement and fringe benefits 40,545 40,545 31,186 9,359 

Supplies 550 550 100 450 
Medical 650 650 630 20 
Utilities and telephone 30,000 30,000 35,564 (5,564) 
Dues 500 500 500 
Advertising 500 500 28 472 
Travel and training 1,000 1,000 490 510 
Building and grounds maintenance 40,750 40,750 36,700 4,050 
Fuel and oil 5,500 5,500 1,762 3,738 
Repairs and maintenance - veh icle 6,000 6,000 3,902 2,098 
Capital Outlay - Vehicles/Campground 73,500 73,500 59,802 13,698 

Total 305,240 305,240 269,249 35,991 

Total Culture and Recreation $ 862,530 $ 862,530 $ 718,928 $ 143,602 

-54-



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

D~~cember 31, 2014 

ASSETS 

Permanent 
Seecial Revenue Funds Fund 

Special Police 
Surplus Forfeiture Fire Cemetery Total 

and Conservation and Capital Equipment Joslin Perpetual Non major 
Grant Deficiency Trust Confiscation Improvement Improvement Needham Care Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Cash $ 26,617 $ 2,529 $ 13, 117 $ 46,453 $ 33,621 $ 31,488 $ 10,340 $ 164, 165 
Investments 100,000 90,000 620, 181 185,000 995,181 
Accounts receivable $ 130,000 1,016 1 1,630 132,647 
Accrued interest revenue 108 361 117 27 613 
Property tax receivable 42,458 42,458 
Sales tax receivable 45,811 45,81 1 

Total Assets $ 130,000 $ 126,617 $ 92,637 $ 13, 117 $ 713,822 $ 261,197 $ 31,488 $ 11,997 $ 1,380,875 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 2,695 $ 3,185 $ 5,880 
Due to other funds $ 130,000 130,000 

Total Liabilities 130,000 2,695 3,185 135,880 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Deferred property tax revenue $ 42,458 42,458 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 42,458 42,458 

Fund Balance 
Restricted for emergency $ 123,575 123,575 
Restricted for park improvements $ 92,637 92,637 
Restricted for police equipment $ 13, 117 13, 117 
Restricted for street improvements 711 ,127 711,127 
Restricted for fire equipment 218,739 218,739 
Committed for park improvements $ 28,303 28,303 
Committed for cemetery maintenance $ 11,997 11 ,997 
Committed for emergency 3,042 3,042 

Total Fund Balance 0 126,61 7 92,637 13, 117 711 ,127 218,739 28,303 11,997 1,202,537 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balance $ 130,000 $ 126,61 7 $ 92,637 $ 13, 117 $ 713,822 $ 261,197 $ 31,488 $ 11,997 $ 1,380,875 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Permanent 
S~ecial Revenue Funds Funds 

Special Police 
Surplus Forfeiture Fire Cemetery Total 

and Conservation and Capital Equipment Joslin Perpetual Non major 
Grant Deficiency Trust Confiscation Improvement Improvement Needham Care Governmental 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds 

Revenues - Classified by major source 
Taxes 

General property $ 40,249 $ 40,249 
Cigarette $ 6,177 6,177 
Sales 280,177 280,177 

Interest $ 134 $ 221 $ 8 1,290 344 $ 33 $ 111 2,141 
Forfeitures 214 214 
Equipment rental 6,151 6,151 
Reimbursements 
Perpetual care sales 8,285 8,285 
Contribution 45,000 45,000 
Intergovernmental 130,000 1,470 131,470 
Colorado lottery funds 52,744 52,744 

Total Revenues 130,000 134 52,965 222 287,644 48,214 45,033 8,396 572,608 

Expenditures - Classified by function 
Noncapital outlay 8,467 134,744 10,790 154,001 
Capital outlay 130,000 89,095 105,869 33,852 45,699 404,515 

Total Expenditures 130,000 97,562 240,613 44,642 45,699 558,516 

Revenues in Excess (Deficiency) 
of Expenditures 

--- ---
134 (44,597) 222 47,031 48,214 391 (37,303) 14,092 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 30,500 30,500 
Transfers out {2,793) (111) (2,904) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,793) 30,500 (111) 27,596 

Net change in fund balance (2,793) 134 (44,597) 222 47,031 78,714 391 (37,414) 41,688 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 2,793 126,483 137.234 12,895 664,096 140,025 27,912 49,411 1,160,849 

Fund balance - End of year $ -0- $ 126,617 $ 92,637 $ 13, 117 $ 711,127 $ 218,739 $ 28,303 $ 11,997 $ 1,202,537 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

GRANT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Revenues 
State grant 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Park improvements 

Expenditures in Excess of Revenues 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfer out 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Original and 
Final 

Budget Actual 

Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

-0-$ 130,000 $ 130,000 $ 
----'-----

130,000 130,000 

130,000 130,000 

(9,362) (2,793) (6,569) 

(9,362) (2,793) (6,569) 

$ (9,362) (2, 793) =$=====6,=56=9= 

2,793 

$ -0-
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

SPECIAL SURPLUS AND DEFICIENCY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Original and Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues 

Interest $ 300 $ 134 $ (166) 

Net change in fund balance $ 300 134 $ (166) 

Fund balance at beginning of year 126,483 

Fund balance at end of year $ 126,617 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BLALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Original and Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues 

Colorado lottery funds $ 54,000 $ 52,744 $ (1,256) 
Interest 150 221 71 

Total Revenues 54,150 52,965 (1,185) 

Expenditures 
Culture and Recreation 

Noncapital outlay 8,467 (8,467) 
Capital outlay - park improvements 122,500 89,095 33,405 

Total Expenditures 122,500 97,562 24,938 

Net change in fund balance $ (68,350) (44,597) $ 23,753 

Fund balance at beginning of year 137,234 

Fund balance at end of year $ 92,637 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

POLICE FORFEITURE CONFISCATION FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Revenues 
Interest 
Forfeitures 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 
Drug forfeiture 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Original and 
Final 

Budget 

$ 50 
200 

250 

10,000 

$ (9,750) 
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Variance -
Favorable 

Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 8 $ (42) 
214 14 

222 (28) 

10,000 

222 $ 9,972 
;;;;;;;;;:;;;;===== 

12,895 

$ 13, 117 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Revenues 
Cigarette tax 
Sales tax 
Interest 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 
Public works 

Noncapital outlay 
Street and drainage 

Total Expenditures 

Net change in fund balance 

Fund balance at beginning of year 

Fund balance at end of year 

Original and 
Final 

Budget Actual 

$ 6,500 $ 6,1 77 
250,000 280,177 

540 1,290 

257,040 287,644 

100,000 134,744 
497,500 105,869 

597,500 240,613 

$ (340,460) 47,031 

664,096 

$ 711,127 
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Variance -
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ (323) 
30,177 

750 

30,604 

(34,744) 
391,631 

356,887 

$ 387,491 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

FIRE EQUIPMENT IMPROVEMENT FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Original and Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues 

Property tax (Net of Treasurer's 
fees of $1,029) $ 40, 190 $ 40,249 $ 59 

Equipment & bldg rental 6,150 6, 151 1 
FEMA funding 1,470 1,470 
Interest 350 344 (6) 

Total Revenues 46,690 48,214 1,524 

Expenditures 
Capital outlay 

Equipment 61,000 61,000 

Revenues in Excess (Deficiency) of Expenditures (14,310) 48,214 62,524 

Other Financing Sources 
Transfer in 30,500 30,500 

Net change in fund balance $ 16, 190 78,714 $ 62,524 

Fund balance at beginning of year 140,025 

Fund balance at end of year $ 218,739 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

JOSLIN NEEDHAM FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Variance -
Original Final Favorable 
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Revenues 
Interest $ 200 $ 200 $ 33 $ (167) 
Contributions 45,000 45,000 

Total Revenues 200 45,200 45,033 (167) 

Expenditures 
Culture and Recreation 

Noncapital outlay 10,790 (10,790) 
Capital outlay 20,000 65,000 33,852 31, 148 

Total Expenditures 20,000 65,000 44,642 20,358 

Net change in fund balance $ (19,800) $ (19,800) 391 $ 20, 191 

Fund balance at beginning of year 27,912 

Fund balance at end of year $ 28,303 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Original and Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues 

Perpetual care sales $ 8,000 $ 8,285 $ 285 
Contributions 1,000 (1,000) 
Interest 1,500 111 (1,389) 

Total Revenues 10,500 8,396 (2, 104) 

Expenditures 
Public works 

Repairs and maintenance 1,472 1,472 
Capital outlay 46,500 45,699 801 

Total Expenditures 47,972 45,699 2,273 

Expenditures in Excess 
of Revenues (37,472) (37,303) 169 

Other Financing Uses 
Transfers Out (1,500) (111) 1,389 

Net change in fund balance $ (38,972) (37,414) $ 1,558 

Fund balance at beginning of year 49,411 

Fund balance at end of year $ 11,997 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

WATER FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Operating Revenue 
Water services 
Administrative fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total Operating Revenue 

Operating Expense 
Personal services 

Salaries 
Retirement and fringe benefits 

Supplies 
Professional services 
Telephone 
Lab fees 
Medical 
Utilities 
Association dues 
Travel and training 
Computer & radio maintenance 
Advertising 
Building 
Licenses/permits 
Insurance - general 
Well electricity 
Water system maintenance & materials 
Line maintenance 
Noncapital outlay 
Capital outlay 
Land 
Fuel and oil 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 

Total Operating Expense 

Operating Loss 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Interest 
Joint venture 
Water rights and credits leases 
Water capacity and development fee 
Farm income 
DOW lease 
Contributions 
Water conservation 
Farm expense 

Original 
Budget 

$ 842,000 
25,000 

1,000 

868,000 

226,895 
90,410 
21,850 

263,850 
1,500 

20,000 
350 

60,000 
500 

2,000 
11,000 

500 
5,000 

30,000 
20,000 
40,000 
45,000 
20,000 

452,500 

12,000 
6,000 

1,329,355 

(461,355) 

3,000 

8,000 
130,000 
25,550 

7,000 
(40,000) 
(15,000) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 118,550 -----'-----
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Final 
Budget 

$ 842,000 
25,000 

1,000 

868,000 

226,895 
90,410 
21,850 

263,850 
1,500 

20,000 
350 

60,000 
500 

2,000 
11,000 

500 
5,000 

30,000 
20,000 
40,000 
45,000 
20,000 

452,500 
290,000 

12,000 
6,000 

1,619,355 

(751,355) 

3,000 

8,000 
130,000 
25,550 

7,000 
(40,000) 
(15,000) 

118,550 

Actual 
(Budget 
Basis) 

$ 859,004 
27,956 

9,246 

896,206 

230,064 
85,673 
11,938 

182,649 
1,771 
5,150 

55,747 
512 
378 

10,004 
1,098 

92 
24,828 
18,889 
34,329 
34,724 

110.431 
173,112 
286,558 

9,187 
3,143 

1,280,277 

(384,071) 

3,670 
122,078 

4,324 
131,099 
21, 144 

3,600 

(38,662) 
(274) 

246,979 

Variance­
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 17,004 
2,956 
8,246 

28,206 

(3, 169) 
4,737 
9,912 

81,201 
(271) 

14,850 
350 

4,253 
(12) 

1,622 
996 

(598) 
4,908 
5,172 
1, 111 
5,671 

10,276 
20,000 

(110,431) 
279,388 

3,442 
2,813 
2,857 

339,078 

367,284 

670 
122,078 

(3,676) 
1,099 

(4,406) 
3,600 

(7,000) 
1,338 

14,726 

128,429 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

WATER FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (cont.) 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Income (Loss) before transfers out and 
capital contributions 

Transfers out 
Capital contributions - tap fees 

Change in net position 

Adjustment to GAAP Basis 
Add capital outlay 
Deduct depreciation 

Change in net position - GAAP Basis 

Net position at beginning of year 

Net position at end of year 

$ 

Original Final 
Budget Budget 

(342,805) (632,805) 

(18,640) (18 ,640) 
1,000 1,000 

(360,445) $ (650,445) 
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Actual 
(Budget 
Basis) 

(137,092) 

(18,640) 

(155,732) 

459,670 
(220,702) 

83,236 

6,910,530 

$ 6,993,766 

Variance-
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

495,713 

(1 ,000) 

$ 494,71 3 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

TRASH AND GARBAGE FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31. 2014 

Orig inal and Actual Variance-
Final (Budget Favorable 

Budget Basis) {Unfavorable) 
Operating Revenue 

Trash services $ 380,000 $ 427,526 $ 47,526 
Sale of trash bags 200 139 (61) 
Sale of cans 5,000 7,700 2,700 
Miscellaneous 5,000 11,087 6,087 

Total Operating Revenue 390,200 446,452 56,252 

Operating Expense 
Personal services 

Salaries 126,210 123,999 2,211 
Retirement and fringe benefits 83,635 81,082 2,553 

Supplies 6,000 4,087 1,913 
Professional services 79,260 78,660 600 
Medical 800 41 759 
Travel and training 600 20 580 
Maintenance and telephone 3,035 2,835 200 
Advertising 1,000 563 437 
Insurance - general 1,300 304 996 
Purchase of cans 14,000 7,346 6,654 
Landfil l contract 90,000 85,090 4,910 
Capital outlay 21,896 (21,896) 
Fuel and oil 25,000 19,626 5,374 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 46,000 10,628 35,372 

Total Operating Expense 476,840 436,177 40,663 

Operating Income (Loss) (86,640) 10,275 96,915 

Nonoperating Revenue 
Interest 500 338 {162~ 

Total Nonoperating Revenue 500 338 (162 

Income (Loss) before transfers out (86, 140) 10,613 96,753 
Transfer out {9,540) {9,540) 

Change in net position $ {95,680) 1,073 $ 96,753 

Adjustment to GAAP Basis 
Add capital outlay 21,896 
Deduct depreciation {19,269) 

Change in net posiiton - GAAP Basis 3,700 

Net position at beginning of year, 
as previously reported 285, 147 

Prior period adjustment 12,361 

Net position at beginning of year, 
as restated 297,508 

Net position at end of year $ 301,208 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

WASTE WATER FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Actual Variance-
Original Final (Budget Favorable 
Budget Budget Basis) (Unfavorable) 

Operating Revenue 
Sewer fees $ 1,495,000 $ 1,495,000 $ 1,504,891 $ 9,891 
Miscellaneous 1,000 1,000 29, 115 28,115 
Administrative fees 100 100 75 (25) 

Total Operating Revenue 1,496, 100 1,496, 100 1,534,081 37,981 

Operating Expense 
Personal services 

Salaries 161,495 161,495 149,862 11,633 
Retirement and fringe benefits 76,575 76,575 62,213 14,362 

Supplies 23,500 23,500 26,210 (2,710) 
Professional services 318,595 355,595 325,948 29,647 
Medical 1,000 1,000 1,068 (68) 
Telephone 2,300 2,300 1,555 745 
Utilities 110,000 110,000 108,850 1, 150 
Association dues 1,000 1,000 175 825 
Travel and training 7,000 7,000 290 6,710 
Computer and radio maintenance 8,050 8,050 7,203 847 
Advertising 500 500 221 279 
Insurance - general 46,000 46,000 45,869 131 
Permits 19,940 19,940 10, 164 9,776 
Repairs and maintenance 75,000 125,000 92,677 32,323 
Sanitary sewer cleaning 75,000 75,000 75,000 
Manholes 20,000 20,000 1,002 18,998 
Sewer lines 20,000 20,000 12,650 7,350 
Noncapital outlay 315,087 (315,087) 
Capital outlay 410,000 445,000 96,844 348,156 
Land 700,000 698,388 1,612 
Fuel and oil 8,000 8,000 7,572 428 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 1,300 1,300 1, 125 175 

Total Operating Expense 1,385,255 2,207,255 2,039,973 167,282 

Operating Income (Loss) 110,845 (711, 155) (505,892) 205,263 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Interest 7,000 7,000 4,203 (2,797) 
Surcharge fees 500 500 29,029 28,529 
Plant investment fee 50,000 50,000 105,000 55,000 
Rental income 4,000 4,000 
Farm income 6,890 6,890 6,888 (2) 
Farm expense (700) (700) (8,824) (8, 124) 
Note payments (628,710) (628, 710) {628,708) 2 

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (565,020) {565,020) (488,412) 76,608 

Loss before transfers out and capital 
contributions (454, 175) (1,276,175) (994,304) 281,871 
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CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

WASTE WATER FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (cont.) 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

Transfers out 
Capital contributions - tap fees 

Change in net position 

Adjustment to GAAP Basis 
Add capital outlay 
Add principal payments 
Add amortized premium 
Add accrued interest 
Deduct depreciation 

Change in net position - GAAP Basis 

Net position at beginning of year 

Net position at end of year 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

$ 

Original 
Budget 

(32,095) 
6,000 

(480,270) 
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Final 
Budget 

(32,095) 
6,000 

$ (1,302,270) 

Actual 
(Budget 
Basis) 

(32,095) 

(1,026,399) 

795,232 
410,000 

19, 105 
994 

(297,729) 

(98,797) 

6,231,956 

$6,133,159 

Variance­
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(6,000) 

$ 275,871 



CITY OF BRUSH, COLORADO 

STORM WATER FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Original and Actual Variance-
Final (Budget Favorable 

Budget Basis) (Unfavorable) 
Operating Revenue 

Service Fees $ 312,000 $ 309,026 $ (2,974) 
Storm water assessment 3,160 3,159 (1) 
Miscellaneous 100 371 271 

Total Operating Revenue 315,260 312,556 (2,704) 

Operating Expense 
Personal services 

Salaries 35,690 34,505 1,185 
Retirement and fringe benefits 18,025 17,261 764 

Supplies 4,050 2,387 1,663 
Professional services 29,130 31,928 (2,798) 
Medical 100 41 59 
Travel and training 700 225 475 
Maintenance and telephone 3,460 3,236 224 
Advertising 200 200 
Insurance - general 4,050 3,051 999 
Sewer cleaning 25,000 25,057 (57) 
Line maintenance 6,700 2,843 3,857 
Pond maintenance 5,000 5,000 
Assessment maintenance 500 88 412 
Curb & gutter maintenance 5,000 2,193 2,807 
Noncapital outlay 8,457 (8,457) 
Capital outlay 400,000 400,000 
Gas and Oil 9,000 8,080 920 
Repairs and maintenance - vehicle 13,000 14,698 (1,698) 

Total Operating Expense 559,605 154,050 405,555 

Operating Income (Loss) (244,345) 158,506 402,851 

Nonoperating Revenue 
Interest 1,000 784 (216) 

Total Nonoperating Revenue 1,000 784 (216) 

Income (loss) before transfers out (243,345) 159,290 402,635 

Transfer out (3,265) (3,265) 

Change in net position $ (246,610) 156,025 $ 402,635 

Adjustment to GAAP Basis 
Deduct depreciation (52,636) 

Change in net position - GAAP Basis 103,389 

Net position at beginning of year 1,254,202 

Net position at end of year $ 1,357,591 
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Colorado Department of Highways 
Local Highway Finance Report 

This calendar-year report of receipts and expenditures is required by the Colorado Department 
of Highways to maintain statewide accountability for moneys used for highway and street 
purposes. To ensure date accuracy, House Bill 1008 mandates that this report be included in 
the City's financial statements. 
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The ublic report burden for this information collection ls estimated to avcra e 380 hours annuall . 

FinHncial Plannin& 02/0 I 
l'orm fl 350-050-36 

City or County: City of Brush 

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT YEAR ENDING : 
December 20 I 4 

This Information from The Records Of(example - City of _ or County of_ Prepared By: Joanne Gosselink 
970-842-500 I Phone: 

l. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE 

ITEM 

!. 
2. 
3. 
4 . 

ITEM 
A. Recci ts from local sources: 

B. 
c. 

D. 

I. Local hi hwa -user laxes 
a. Motor Fuel from Item I.A.5. 
b. Motor Vehicle from Item 1.8 .5 . 
c. Total a.+b. 

5. Transfers from toll facilities 
6. Proceeds of" sale of bonds and notes: 

a. Bonds - Ori inal Issues 
b. Bonds - Rcfundin Issues 
c. Notes 

A. Local B. ocal 
Motor-Fuel Motor-Vehicle 

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD 

IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS 
Show all entries at ar 

O enin Debt Amount Issued 

AND STREET PURPOSES 
ITEM AMOUNT 

Redem lions Closin Debt 

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE 

0 

inn in Balance B. Total Recei ls C. Total Disbursement D. Endin Balance E. Reconciliation 

Notes and Comments: 

FORM FIIWA-536 (Rev. 1-05) 

I 037 994 1,037,994 

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE 
1 

0 

(Next Page) 

2014 HWY USERS REPORT.xis 



STATE: 
Colorado 

LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT YEAR ENDING (mm/yy): 
December 2014 

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL 

ITEM 
A.3. Other local im osts: 

a. Pro erl Taxes and Assessments 
b. Other local im osts: 

l. Sales Taxes 
2. Infrastructure & Im act Fees 
3. Liens 
4. Licenses 
5. S ecific Ownershi &/or Other 
6. Total I. thrnu h 5. 

c. Total a. + b. 

c. 

AMOUNT 

165,1 65 

610,552 

89,279 
699,831 
864,996 

(Car forward to RBe ! 

AMOUNT 

A.4. 
AMOUNT 

28,564 

28,564 
Car forward to page I) 

0 

(Carry forward to age I) 

III. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES- DETAIL 

A.I. 

ommcnts: 

FORM FHWA-536 (Rcv.1-05) 

ON NATIONAL 
HIGHWAY 
SYSTEM 

a) 

OFF NATIONAL 
HIGHWAY 
SYSTEM 

b 

TOTAL 

c 

0 
0 

--- - - ------ -- -- --- - - --
0 
0 

11 5,056 115,056 
0 

0 I I 5 056 115,056 
0 11 5 ,056 1------l.:....l_S,'-0_56-1 

--------------- --~ (Carry forward to iage I) 

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE 
2 


